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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN

GENERAL SCIENTIFIC CORP.,
a Michigan corporation,

Plaintiff, Case No.
v. Hon.
ROSE MICRO SOLUTIONS, LLC, JURY DEMAND

a New York Limited Liability Company,

Defendant.

John G. Posa (P49445)

Allen M. Krass (P16218)

Gifford, Krass, Sprinkle,
Anderson, & Citkowski, P.C.

2701 Troy Center Drive, suite 330,

Troy, Michigan 48007

(248) 647-6000

Attorneys for Plaintiff

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

PLAINTIFF, General Scientific Corporation (“GSC”), as against Defendant Rose Micro

Solutions, LLC (“Rose™) hereby alleges as follows:

I. THE PARTIES

1. Plaintiff GSC is a Michigan corporation having its principal place of business at 77
Enterprise Drive, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103.
2. Upon information and belief, Rose is a New York Limited Liability Company with

offices at 35 Tyrol Drive, Cheektowaga, N.Y. 14227
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II. JURISDICTION
3. Jurisdiction is conferred on this Court under 28 U.S.C. §1338(a), as Plaintiff’s claim

is patent-related. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. §1400 (b), in that Defendant is committing acts of
patent infringement within this District. Jurisdiction is further conferred on this Court by 15 U.S.C.
§1123, as this case involves alleged violations by Rose of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act,

15 U.S.C. §1125(a), with venue being appropriate under 28 U.S.C. §1391(b)(2).

III. BACKGROUND

4, Plaintiff General Scientific Corp. (“GSC”) is a closely held company that, infer alia,
designs, manufactures, assembles, packages, and sells inter alia, magnifying surgical loupe products,
including telemicroscopes, lights, video cameras and other accessory items under the brand name
SurgiTel®. 1t has been engaged in this product line since at least 1992.

5. Rose is engaged in the importation and marketing of magnifying surgical loupe
products, including telemicroscopes, lights, and other accessory items in direct competition with
General Scientific Corp.

6. The surgical loupe products sold by both GSC and Rose are directed toward
physicians, primarily surgeons, dent%sts, and dental technicians. The industry is highly competitive,

and GSC has secured numerous patents to protect its interests.

COUNT I - INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 6,704,141

7. Plaintiffis the owner of U.S. Patent No. 6,704,141, entitled OCULAR MOUNTING
ASSEMBLY, which duly and lawfully issued on March 9, 2004, and continues to be in full force

and effect (“the ‘141 patent,” Exhibit A).

]
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8. Defendant Rose is making, using, selling within this District and/or offering for loupe
products which infringe Plaintiff’s ‘141 patent.

9. Defendant’s infringement of the ‘141 patent by Rose is causing damage to Plaintiff,
including lost sales and profits.

10.  Defendant’s infringement of the 141 patent by Rose is causing harm to Plaintiff for
which Plaintiff is without an adequate remedy at law.

11.  Defendant’s infringement of the ‘141 patent by Rose is willful and deliberate.

COUNT Il — VIOLATION OF THE LANHAM ACT
SECTION 43(a) [15 U.S.C. §1125(a)]

12.  GSCincorporates herein by reference those facts alleged in paragraphs 1 through 11
above.

13.  Inits advertising (Exhibit B), Defendant Rose makes false and misleading statements
of fact regarding products available form GSC and the prices which GSC charges for such products.

Such statements have actually deceived, or are likely to deceive, a substantial segment of the target
audience for such advertisements, including potential customers of GSC. Such deception is
material in that it is likely to influence purchasing decisions.

14.  Rose’s advertisements are causing confusion, mistake or deception as to Rose’s
affiliation, connection, or association with GSC, including the origin, sponsorship, or approval by
GSC of Rose’s goods, services, or commercial activities.

15. Defendant’s false and misleading advertisements are in violation of The Lanham Act,

Section 43(a), 15 U.S.C. §1125(a). Asaresult of such violations, GSC is being damaged or is likely
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to be damaged. Rose’s violation of the Lanham Act is causing harm to GSC for which Plaintiff is

without an adequate remedy at law.

16.

Rose’s violation of the Lanham Act is willful and deliberate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that this Court find that:

(a)
(b}
(©)
(d)
patent;
(€)
(0
law;
®
()

Plaintiff’s ‘141 patent is valid and enforceable as against Defendant;
Defendant has infringed, and is infringing, the patent;
Defendant’s infringement of the ‘141 patent is willful and deliberate;

Defendant be preliminarily and finally enjoined from further infringement of the

Plaintiff be awarded damages caused by Defendant's infringement of the patent;

Plaintiff be granted its costs, attorney's fees and increased damages as provided by

Defendant has engaged in False Advertising in violation of the Lanham Act; and

Other and further relief as this Court deems proper and just.

Respectfully submitted,

By: /sfJohn G. Posa

John G. Posa (P49445)

Allen M. Krass (P16218)

Gifford, Krass, Sprinkle,
Anderson, & Citkowski, P.C.

2701 Troy Center Drive, suite 330,

Troy, Michigan 48007

(248) 647-6000

(248) 647-5210 (fax)

litigation@patlaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

Dated: March 4, 2011
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff, by and through its attorneys, hereby demands a trial by jury in the above cause of
action.

Respectfully submitted,

By: /s/John G. Posa

John G. Posa (P49445)

Allen M. Krass (P16218)

Gifford, Krass, Sprinkle,
Anderson, & Citkowski, P.C.

2701 Troy Center Drive, suite 330,

Troy, Michigan 48007

(248) 647-6000

Attorneys for Plaintiff

Dated: March 4, 2011
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57 ABSTRACT

A oculir mounting assembly [or adjustubly mounting a pair
of ocular devices, such ss telemicroscopic loupes, to an
eyeglass frame or head mount with linear and rotational
adjustments, but with view angle being permanently preset
in accordance with working distance. The ocular mounting
assembly includes an adjustable ocular support assembly
and an adjustable clamp assembly rotatably attached to the
ocular support assembly. The ocular mounting assembly
includes a housing and two slidable mounting arms to which
the ocular devices are attached, the Iransverse cross-
sectional shape of the housing interior and mounting arms
being such that substaniially all of the volume of the housing
interior is consumed apart from close tolerances to facilitale
the sliding motion, thus resulling in a structure which
cooperates to assist in providing a substantizlly rigid assem-
bly.

14 Clnims, 6 Drawing Shects
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1
OCULAR MOUNTING ASSEMBLY

This application is n continvation of applicslion Ser. No.
08/370,535, filed Jan. 9, 1995, now abandoned which is a
continuation-in-part of Ser. No. 08/093,831, filed Jul. 19,
1993, pow U.S. Pat. No. 5,381,263,

REFERENCE TO RELATED APPLICATION

This is a conlinuation-in-part of co-pending U.S. patent
upplication Ser. No. 08/093,831, filed Jul. 19, 1903,

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

This inveniion relates generally Lo telemicroscopic instru-
ments and, more particularly, 10 ocular mounting assemblies
for adjusiably mounting & pair of \elemicroscopic loupes 1o
un eveplass frame or headband.

Telescopic instruments are widely used for magnilying a
work area during precision work such as delicate surpery,
dental work, inspection of circuit board solder joints, and
assembly of miniature paris. A typical telemicroscopic
instrument includes a pair of telemicroscopic loupes which
are adjustably mounted to an eyeglass frame or headland.
‘The tefescopic loupes combine the long working distance af
the telescope with the high quality magnification of the
microscope. This type of optical instrument provides the
user, o surgeon, for example, with 4 magnified image of the
work area with a field of view at about an arm’s length. The
meounting assemblies typically used in 1hese lelemicroscopic
instruments provide a varicty of degrees of freedom.
Although a wide range of adjusiments increases flexibility,
il also increases the risk that one or more of the adjustments
will come Joose during use. Accordingly, there has been a
need for an ocular mounting assembly which sacrifices at
least certain of the adjustments on a predetermined, selective
basis in favor of operationzl stability. By offering three
view-angle adjustments with a fixed convergence angle, and
other comprnents which promote rigidity, the present inven-
tion clearly fulfills this need.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

The present invention resides in a novel oenlar mounling
assembly for adjustably mounting a pair of ocular devices,
such as wlemicroscopic loupes, 1o an eyeglass frame or
headband with linear and rotational azdjustments, bul
wherein convergence angle is fixed a5 2 function of working
distance, thus providing a highly stable configuration, resis-
1ant o vibration or impact and misadjustment during use.
The ocular mounting assembly includes an adjustable ocular
support assembly and an adjusiable clamp ssscmbly rotal-
ably altached 10 the ocular suppon assembly. The adjustable
clamp assembly provides height and view angle adjustment
of the ocular devices and allows the ocular devices to be
flipped up out of the way when not needed. The height
adjusimenl in conjunction with the view angle adjustment
allows the line of sipght 10 be adjusted while the ocular
devices are positioned close to the eye ar eyeglass lens.

In a preferred embodiment of the present invention, the
ocular support assembly includes » rectangular-shaped ocu-
lar support assembly housing, & pair of ccular support arms
and an interpupillary adjustment knob. The ocular suppart
arms are slidably disposed within the assembly housing and
the adjusiment knob is inseried through an opening in the
assembly housing 1o engage a slot in cach ocular support
arm. The adjusiment koob has a se1 of serrated 1eeth which
engapes a set of secrated teeth in each slot, such that rotalion
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of the knob causes the ocular support arms te skide irs and ot
of the assembly housing for adjustment of the interpupillary
distance between the two acular devices,

To further ensure stability against vibration or impact, the
width of the ocular assembly housing is maximized as o
fupction of interpupillary distance, and the suppon arms
include siabilizing clements 10 enhance rigidity. ln the
preferred embediment the suppon arms includes at least two
members perpendicular 1o one another in Iransverse cross-
seclion to counterzet longitudinal twisting. In the preferred
embodiment, the support arms are L-shaped in transverse
cross-section and overlapped in mirror-image fashion within
the housing so that the housing and both suppor arms
consume the greatest volume within the housing and act in
conjunction with one anothier for the highest possible depree
of rigidity during use.

A view angle hinge pin is rigidly aitached to the ocular
supporl assembly housing for rolatably sttaching the ocelar
support assembly 10 the adjusiahle clamp assembly, thus
allowing the view angle ol the oculir devices 10 be adjusted.
The adjustable clamp assembly includes a pair of clamp
assembly members, o clamp assembly housing, a height
adjustment rail, and an eyeglass frame mounting clamp. The
clamp assembly members have slols thal enpage the view
angle hinge pin and a fip-up hinge pin. The fip-up hinge pin
is rigidly attached 10 the clamp assembly housing and
rotalably attaches the clamp assembly members 10 the
assembly housing, thus allowing the ocular devices to be
flipped up ot of the way when they are not needed.

The clamp assembly housing preferably includes an
undercut channet thal engages o rectangular-shaped under-
cul pad on the heipht adjustment rail, thus allowing the
height of the ocular devices to be adjusied. The eyeglass
frame mounting clamp and the height ndjustment rail clamp
together about an eyeglass frame to rigidly atiach the clamp
asseanbly 1o the cyegluss or headband,

It will be apprecinted from the forepoing that the present
invention represents a significant advance in the field of
lelemicroscopic instruments. Otber features and advantages
of the present invention will become apparent from the
[ollowing more detailed description, taken in conjunclion
with e accompanying drawings, which illustrate, by way
of example, the principles ol the invention.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

FI1G. 1 is a perspective view of a telemicroscopic instru-
ment employing the ocular mounting assembly of the
present invention;

FIG. 2A is & side view drawing of the invention in use
with the height adjustment rail in the up position;

FIG. 2B is a side view drawing of 1he invention in use
with the height adjustment rail in the middie position;

FIG. 2C is a side view drawing of the invention with the
height adjustment rail in the down position, which also best
illusirates bi-vision capability;

FIG. 3 is a perspective view ol the ocular mounting
assembly showing the various pans of the assembly;

FIG. 4A is an oblique drawing which shows ocular
suppori arms extending from the prior-art housinp;

F1G. 4B is an obligue drawing which illustrawes the
improved housing/support arm confipuration of the present
invention, wherein the slots of the support arms are at all
limes maintained within the housing;

FIG. 5 is a table which lists working dislances as a
function of angular magnification and other [actors used in
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determining the angle at which convergence should be fixed
given a particular application; and

FIG. 6 is an oblique view of a headband mounted version
ol the invention.

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF THE
PREFERRED EMBODIMENT

As shown in the drawings for purposes of fllustration, the
presen! invention s cmbodied in a novel ocular mounting,
assembly for adjustably mounting & pair of ocular devices,
such as telemicroscopic loupes, to an eyeglass frame or
headband with a high degree ol vibrational stability. The
ocular mounting assembly includes an adjustable ocular
supporl assembly and an adjustable clamp assembly rolat-
ably aftached to the ocular support assembly. The ocular
support assembly provides ooly for interpupillary distance
adjustment of the ocular deviees, and includes @ bousing and
slidable ocular support arms which cooperate 1o enhance
rigidity. The adjustable clamp assembly provides height and

view angle adjustment of the ocular devices and allows the -

ocular devices to be fipped up om of the way when not
needed. The height adjustment in conjunction with the view
angle adjustment allows the line of sight 10 be adjusted while
\he cenlar devices are positioned close 10 the cye or eyeglass
Iens.

As shown in FIG. 1, an ocular mounting assembly 16
constructed in accordance with the presenl invention
includes an eyeglass frame 12, a pair of ocular devices 14,
and the ocular mouniing assembly 10 which adjustably
mounis the ocular devices 14 to the eyeglass rame 12. The
ocular mounling assembly 10 includes an adjustable acular
supporl assembly 16 and an adjustable clamp assembly 18
that is rotatably attached 1o the ocular support assembly 16.
The ocular support assembly 16 supporis the ocular devices
14 and the adjustable clamp assembly 18 is rigidly altached
1o the eyeglass frame 12.

‘The ocular support assembly 16 includes a reclangular-
shaped veular suppont assembly housiog 20, a pair of veular
supporl arms 22 and an interpupillary adjustment knob 24,
The ocular support arms 22 zre slidably disposed within the
assembly housing 20 and the adjustment koob 24 is inserted
thirough an opening in the assembly housing to engage a slot
26 in cach oculur support arm 22. The adjustment knob 24
has a set of serrated teeth 28 which engages a set of serrated
teeth 30 in each sloy 26, such that motation of the koob 24
causes the ocular support arms 22 10 slide in and out of the
assembly housing 20 for adjustment of the interpupillary
dislance between the two ocular devices 14,

The ocular devices 14 are al least initially rotatable with
respect to the ends of the ocular support arms 22, thus
allowing convergence angle 1o be fixed. Once convergence
angle is determined for a particular working distance,
however, the ocular devices 14 are cemented into place by
injecting glue in and around the upwardly exiending cylin-
drical flanges 31. The ocular devices are atlached by screws
32 which allow the rotational friction of the convergence
angle adjustment 1o be varied prior 1o the ocular devices
being cemented. Once the ocular devices are locked in
posilion based upon a particular viewing angle, covers 33
may optionally be adhered to the top of cach support arm 22
lo ensure thal the user is given a clear impression Ihat
convergence zople is oo longer adjustable,

FIGS. 2A, 2B and 2C illustraic the advantage of combin-
ing paralle] view-angle and flip-up hinge pins (34 and 44,
respectively) along with a heipht adjusiment rail. Although
FIG. 2 shows the mounting in use with an eyeplass-oricnled
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configuration, the following discussion applies equally well
10 the headband-mounted version discussed with relerence
1o FIG. 6. FIG. 2A shows how, with the height adjustment
in the up position, the oculars may be sel for a near-
horizontal angle 202, while mainlaining close distanece to the
eyes of the user. As shown in FIG. 2B, by moving the height
adjustmen rail to the middle position, the distance 1o the
eyes may be mainizined while decreasing the angle of view
for mid-range viewing, as depicled by angle 204. In FIG, 2C,
with the height adjustment rail in the down position, the
angle may be decreased further o the sharp anple 206 while
maintaining a close distance to the eyes of the user. 14 should
bhe clear, then, that the Nip-up hinge pin is useful not only lor
the fip-up function, bul also serves as a third degree of

s freedom in adjusting view angle while mainlaining a close

distance to the eyes of the user, Only by combining a
view-angle hinge pin, flip-up hinge pin and vertical adjusi-
meni rail of some kind, is this degree of fexibility passible.
FIG. 2C also best iltustrales how the invention accommo-
date excellent bi-vision capabilily in that normal vision is
available trough angle of view 204 while magnified vision
is available throuph the oculars as depicted by area 208, This
gives a full, unrestricted normal vision aver the lop of ihe
oculars and normal peripheral vision at right and left sides,
which allows for an easy exchange of clinical instruments
during procedures using normal vision while maintaining
doctor-patient and doctor-assistant eye contacl.

As shown in FIG. 3, a view angle hinge pin 34 is rigidly
atiached to the ocular support assembly bousing 20 for
rotatably attaching the ocular support assembly 16 lo the
adjustable clamp assembly 18, thus allowing the view angle
of the ocular devices 14 to be adjusted. The adjustable clamp
assemhbly 18 includes a pair of clamp assembly members 36,
a venically translatable element 38, a height adjustment rail
40, and an eyeglass frame mounting clamp 42. The clamp
assembly members 36 have openings 43 that engage the
view angle hinge pin 34 and a fAip-up hinge pin 44. The
flip-up hinge pin 44 is rigidly anached 10 the vertically
trapslatable element 38 and rotatably attaches the clamp
assembly members 36 10 the vertically translatable elememt
38, thus allowing the ocular devices 14 to be fipped up oul
of the way when they are not needed. The clamp assembly
members 36 are fastened together with screws 46 which
allow the retational friction of the view angle adjustment
and the flip-up hinge to be varied.

The clamp assembly housing 38 includes an undercut
channel 48 thal engapges a rectangular-shuped undercut pad
50 on the height adjustment rail 40, thus allowing the beight
of the ocular devices 14 to be adjusted. The height adjust-
menl in conjunction with the view angle adjustment allows
the line of sight to be adjusted while the acular devices are
positioned clase to the eye or eyeglass lens. A serew 52 und
nut 54 lock the clamp assembly housing 3B 10 the heighi
adjustment rail 40 once the desired height of the ocular
devices 14 is selecled, The eyeplass frame mounting clamp
42 and the height adjusiment rail 40 clamp lopether about
the eyeplass frame 12 using screws 56 1o rigidly anach the
clamp assembly 18 10 the eyeglass frame. The mounting
clamp cap also be used lo mount the ocular mounting
assembly 1o a head mount.

F1G. 4A shows a prior-art housing 402 and ocular support
arms 404 and 406. As in the presen invention, each support
arm includes an elongated aperure formed therethrough,
with one inside edge of cach slot including serrations which
mate with the inerpupillary distance adjustment contral
knob 418. However, in this prior-art destgn, the semated,
elongated slots extend nearly the entire length of the support
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arms and terminate in the vicinity of the occular mount
poinis, leading to a situation wherein with the support arms
fully extended, these serrated slois likewise extend past the
right and lelt entrances o the housing 402. This situztion
severely impicts rigidity in that instead of iwao solid suppornt
arms exlending {rom either side of the housing, it is though
there are Iwo parlial support arm pieces extending from
cither side of the housing, or four clongaled members in
lotal, which is quite prone to a twisting moment along an
axis through the two support trms. This twisting moment
and relased problems are particularly proaounced if hesvier
weight oculars are used, and the entire assembly receives a
sharp impact, which resulis in the angle of use between the
two oculars 1o be highly unsizble and mismatched.

FIG. 4B shows an improved version of the supporl
housing 420 characieristic of the present invention, wherein
although 1he suppori arms in the preferred embodiment also
include clongated serrated slots, the widih of the housing
and the width of the slots are adjusted so that, even in the
fully extended position, the serrated portions of the arms do
not leave the housing. As such, the L-shaped cooperalive
structure associated with the two arms, as evidenced by the
extended portion of the arm 422 and the side-view of the arm
424, is pever compromised, since the serrated apertures are
always contained within the housiog 420,

FIG. 5 is a table which lists four versions of the oculars
used in the invention, each with a different anpular magni-
fication. This table is used for illusiralive purposes only, and
it should be understood that other characleristics in terms aof
magnificalion, size/weipht, field-ol-view and working dis-
lances are enlirely possible. Making use of the values
provided in FIG, 5, il can be seen that [or an anpular
magnification of 2,15% und fields of view ranging [rom three
inches in mine inches, working distances in the range 9.5
inches 10 24.7 inches resull. Accorling lo the invention,
then, for example, given an angular magpification of 2.15x
and a field of view of three to seven inches, resulting in a
working distance or range of 9.5 10 18.2 inches, the con-
vergence angle will be fixed and the ocular cemented in
place for 2 working distance somewhere in the central region
between ihese two limits. In the preferred case, the working
distance is factory preset precisely al the midpoint between
these two values, resulting in a Iypical working distance of
13.85 inches.

Alihough it may scem that a fixed convergence angle at a
given working distance may work against the Bexibility of
the resulting instrument and lead to a deterioration of image
qualily, in [acy, it has been shown that image quality over the
entire working range is pot noliceably affected, and that in
the wrade off between providing the type of vibrational
slability possible by fixing the convergence angle and a
convergence anple which is widely adjusiable, a [actory
setting of the convergence angle is favorable, particularly if
the design somehow allows the convergence angle adjust-

ments 10 loosen, in which case the oculars will move during s

use fesulling in an inconvenient if nol dangerous situation.
As with the fixed working distance just discussed, all of the
working distances shown in FIG. 5 for all of the various
apgular magnifications may be similarly preset though, in
some cases, deviations away [rom ap exact midpoint in
terms of working distance may be necessary depending upon
angular magnification and field of view.

FIG. 6 is an oblique drawing which illustrates a headband
mounted version of the invention. In place of the vertically
translatable element 38, height adjustment rail 40 and other
clements specifically associated with the eyeglass-mount
version, the clamp assembly members 36 are instead
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coupled to a vertically clongaled element 612 having a
vertical slot 614 through which a heigh! adjusiment koob
620 extends. This height adjustment knob 620 allows the
user to lock the member 612 af any poinl with respect 1o the
slot 614, thereby offering (he same thres-part movemenl
with which the eyeplnass-mount version s capable with
respecl 1o view-angle sdjusiment. As with the clnmp assem-
bly members 36, all other components associated with
ocular mounling may be otherwise identical to the eyeglass
version. Other features associsted with the headband mount
include optional face shield mount 626, a disposable sweal-
band 630 and overhead strap adjustment 634, and an adjust-
ment 640 adjusting the headband averall.

From the foregoing, it will be apprecinied that the present
invention represents a significant advance in the field of
ielemicroscopic instruments. Although a preferred embodi-
ment of the tovention has been shown and a deseribed, it will
be apparent that other adapiations and modifications can be
made withou departing from the spirit and scope of the
mvention. Accordingly, the invention is oo 1o be Hmited,
excepl as by the following claims.

‘What is claimed is:

1. An ocular mounting assembly, comprising:

an ocular support assembly providing interpupiliary

distance—adjustment for a pair of ocular devices
atisched to the supporl assembly, each ocular device
being initially rotatable with respect to the suppart
assembly at respective regions of rotation, the relative
rolalion beiween the pair of oculars esiablishing a
convergence angle;

means for independently and permancntly preventing 1he

rotation of each ocular with respect 1o the suppert
assembly al respective repions ol rotation once a
desired convergence angle has been achieved; and

an adjustable clamp assembly rotatably attached 1o the

ocular support assembly providing height and view
angle adjustment of the ocular deviees and allowing 1he
ocular devices to be flipped up out of the way when not
needed.

2. The ocular mounting assembly as set forth in claim 1,
wherein the adjustable ocular support assembly includes:

an ocular support assembly bousing having o predeter-

mined enclosed shape In transverse cross-section; and

a pair of ocular supporl arms slidably disposed within the

assembly bousing, the transverse cross-section ol each
support arm being aligned with each other in a mirror-
image fashion such that when slidably disposed within
the housing, the space therein is substaniially con-
sumed.

3. The ocular mounting assembly as set forth in claim 2,
wherein the ocular support assembly housing features a
reciangular-shaped internal cross-section; and

each ocular support arm is L-shaped in transverse cross-

scction, and the two supporl arms are disposed sym-
metrically in mirror-image fashion within the housing.

4. The ocular mounting assembly as set forth in claim 2,
wherein the adjustable ocular support assembly includes:

an ocular support assembly housing baving a rigidly

altached view anple hinge pin and each ocular support
arm having s slot with a set of serrated teeth; and

an interpupillary adjustment knob having a set of serrated

teeth that is inserted into an opening in the assembly
housing for enpagement with the serrated teeth in the
slots of the ocular support arms,

wherein rotation of the interpupillary adjusiment knob

causes the ocular suppon arms to slide in and out of 1he
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assembly housing for adjusiment of the interpupillary
distance between the two ocular devices.

5. The ocular mounting assembly as set forth in claim 1,
wherein the ccular devices are rotatably attached 1o the ends
of the ocular support arms by screws which sllow the
rotational friction of the convergence angle and view direc-
tion adjustment to be varied priar to the ocular devices being
permanenily locked in place as a function of working
distance.

6. The ocular mounting assembly as set forth in claim 1,
wherein the adjusiable clamp assembly includes:

a clamp assembly housing haviog a rigidly-altached

flip-up hinpe pin and an undercul chaonel;

a pair of clamp assembly members having slots that
enpage the [lip-up hinge pin and a view angle hinge pin;
and

4 beight adjusiment rail having a reclangular-shaped
undereut pad that engages the undercut channel of the
clamp assembly bousing 1o allow the height of the
ocular devices 10 be adjusted,

wherein the view angle is adjusted by rolating the ocular
support nssembly about the view angle hinge pin and
the ocular devices are flipped up oot of the way by

rotaling the ocular support assembly and clamp assem- -

bly members aboul the fip-up hinge pin.

7. The ocular mounting assembly as sel forth in claim 6,
and further including a mounting clamp thal clamps logether
with the height adjustment rail about a frame 1o rigidly
attach the clamp assembly to the lrame.

8. The ocunlar mounting assembly as set forth in claim 6,
wherein the clamp assembly members are fastened togetler
with screws that allow the rotational [riction of the view
angle adjustiment and the Hip-up of the ocular devices to he
varied.

9. The ocular mounting assembly as set forth in claim §,
and further including a screw and nut for locking the clamp
ussembly housing to the height adjustment rail once the
desired height of the ocular devices is selected.

1. A method for cuslomizing an ocular mouniing
assembly, comprising the steps ol;

15
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providing an ocular support assembly having an interpun-
pillary distance adjustment for a pair of ocular devices
aliached to the suppori assembly, a convergence angle
associated with the ocular devices being adjustable via
adjustimen! means;
providing an adjusizble clamp assembly rotatably
atlached to the ocular support assembly providing
height and view angle adjusiment of the ocular devices
and sllowing the ocular devices to be fipped up oul of
the way when not in use;
determining a prelerred convergence angle as # lunction
of working distance; and
permanently fixing the ocular devices 1o the preferred
convergence angle,
11. The method of claim 140, wherein the ocular supporl
assembly includes:
an ocular suppon assembly housing baving a predeter-
mined enclosed shape in transverse cross-section; and
a pair of ocular suppar arms, each support arm having a
substantially solid portion extending exteriorly of the
assembly housing, the support arms slidably disposed
within the assembly housing, the Iransverse cross-
section of each support arm being aligned with cach
other such that when slidably disposed within the
housing, the space therein is substantially consumed.
12. The method of claim 11, wherein the ocular support
assembly housing [eatures a rectangular-shaped internal
crass-section; and
euch ocular support arm is L-shaped in transverse cross-
section, and the \wo suppoerl arms are disposed sym-
metrically in mirror-imiage fashion within the housing,
13. The method of claim 1), wherein the step of perma-
nently fixing the ocular devices to the preferred convergence
angle includes:
applying an cover ta the adjusiment menps.
14. The method of claim 10, wherein the convergence
angle is fixed for a working distance of 13.85 inches.

+ »* L *
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UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION

PATENT NO. :6,704,141 B1 Pagelof 1
DATED : March 9, 2004
INVENTOR(S) : David Nowak and Richard Xim

it is certified that error appears in the above-identified patent and that said Letters Patent is
hereby carrected as shown betow:

Colomn 1,
Line 3, please add: -- REFERENCE TQ RELATED APPLICATION --
Lines 7-10, delete lines.

Column 6,

Line 13, replace “adjustment 640” with -- adjustment 644 --,
Line 17, replace “and a described” with -- and described --.
Column 8,

Line 37, insert -- applying an adhesive to the adjustment means; and --.
Line 37, replace “an cover” with -- a cover —.

Signed and Sealed this

Third Day of August, 2004

WD

JONW. DUDAS
Acting Director of the United States Patens and Trademark Office
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